
PLANNING COMMISSION FINAL REPORT  
 
Case No. 0820-03  
INFOR No. 20ZN1020 
 
Planning Commission Hearing Date: August 19, 2020 
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Owner: Owen A. Norton 
Applicant: Owen A. Norton 
Location Address: 2926 Laguna Shores Road 
Legal Description: Being a 7.005 acre tract out of a 7.632 acre tract described in a 
deed recorded in Document No. 2005036804, Official Public Records of Nueces County, 
Texas and also being out of Lots 8 and 9, Section 53, Flour Bluff and Encinal Farm and 
Garden Tracts as shown on a map recorded in Volume "A", Pages 41-43, Map Records 
of Nueces County, Texas, located along the east side of Laguna Shores Road, south of 
Glenoak Drive, and north of Caribbean Drive. 
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 From: “RM-1” Multifamily 1 District 
To: “RV” Recreational Vehicle Park District  
Area: 7.01 acres 
Purpose of Request: To allow for the construction of a recreational vehicle park. 
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 Existing Zoning District Existing  
Land Use 

Future  
Land Use 

Site “RM-1” Multifamily 1 Vacant High Density 
Residential 

North 
“RS-6” Single-Family 6 and 

“CN-1” Neighborhood 
Commercial 

Drainage and 
Vacant 

Permanent  
Open Space and High 

Density Residential 

South 
“RS-6” Single-Family 6 and 

“CN-1” Neighborhood 
Commercial 

Vacant, Low 
Density 

Residential, and 
Commercial 

Low Density 
Residential and 

Commercial 

East “RS-6” Single-Family 6 Vacant and Light 
Industrial Commercial 

West 
“CG-2” General Commercial 

and “CR-1” Resort 
Commercial 

Low Density 
Residential 

Low Density 
Residential 
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Area Development Plan: The subject property is located within the boundaries of the 
Flour Bluff Area Development Plan and is planned for a High Density Residential use. 
The proposed rezoning to the “RV” Recreational Vehicle Park District is consistent with 
the adopted Comprehensive Plan (Plan CC) and warrants an amendment to the Future 
Land Use map. 
Map No.: 035028 
City Council District: 4 
Zoning Violations:  None 
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Transportation and Circulation: The subject property has approximately 650 feet of 
street frontage along Laguna Shores Road which is designated as a “P1” Parkway 
Collector Street. According to the Urban Transportation Plan, “P1” Parkway Collector 
Streets can convey a capacity between 1,000 to 3,000 Average Daily Trips (ADT). 
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Transportation 

Plan Type 
Proposed 
Section 

Existing 
Section  

Traffic 
Volume 

Laguna Shores 
Road 

“P1” Parkway 
Collector 

80’ ROW 
40’ paved 

60’ ROW 
30’ paved N/A 

 
Staff Summary: 
 
Requested Zoning: The applicant is requesting a rezoning from the “RM-1” Multifamily 1 District 
to the “RV” Recreational Vehicle Park District to allow for the construction of a recreational vehicle 
park.  
 
Development Plan:  The subject property is 7.01 acres in size. The proposed use is a 
recreational vehicle park with approximately 100 pad sites. The proposed park will have a small 
office with two employees. The hours of operation will be from 8 am to 5 pm. 
 
Existing Land Uses & Zoning: The subject property is currently zoned “RM-1” Multifamily 1 
District and consists of vacant property and has remined undeveloped since annexation in 1961. 
To the north is a drainage canal. The Van Galen Drainage Tributary is approximately 75-feet wide 
and 8 feet deep. Across the canal, to the north is a City wastewater lift station on approximately 
3.7 acres of property and zoned “RS-6” Single-Family 6 District. To the south are vacant 
properties and a convenience store zoned “CN-1” Neighborhood Commercial District. 
Additionally, along the southern property line of the subject property is a single-family residential 
subdivision (Tropic Park; 1961) zoned “RS-6” single-Family 6 District. To the east are vacant 
properties zoned “CG-2” General Commercial District and “CR-1” Resort Commercial District. 
Further to the east is the Laguna Madre lagoon and estuary. To the west is a single-family 
residential subdivision (Tropic Park; 1961) zoned “RS-6” Single-Family 6 District. 
 
AICUZ: The subject property is not located in one of the Navy’s Air Installation Compatibility Use 
Zones (AICUZ). 
 
Plat Status: The property is not platted. 
 
Utilities:   

Water: 12-inch ACP line located along Laguna Shores Boulevard. 
Wastewater: 18-inch VCP line located along Laguna Shores Boulevard. 
Gas: 4-inch service line located along Laguna Shores Boulevard. 
 
Storm Water: Drainage canal along the norther property line and roadside ditches located 
along Laguna Shores Boulevard. 

 
Plan CC & Area Development Plan Consistency: The subject property is located within the 
boundaries of the Flour Bluff Area Development Plan and is planned for a High Density 
Residential use. The proposed rezoning to the “RV” Recreational Vehicle Park District is 
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consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan (Plan CC) and warrants an amendment to the 
Future Land Use map. The following policies should be considered: 
 

• Encourage orderly growth of new residential, commercial, and industrial areas (Future 
Land Use, Zoning, and Urban Design Policy Statement 1). 

• Promote a balanced mix of land uses to accommodate continuous growth and promote 
the proper location of land uses based on compatibility, locational needs, and 
characteristics of each use. (Future Land Use, Zoning, and Urban Design Policy 
Statement 1). 

• Promote interconnected neighborhoods with appropriate transitions between lower-
intensity and higher-intensity land uses. (Future Land Use, Zoning, and Urban Design 
Policy Statement 3). 

• Support the separation of high-volume traffic from residential areas or other noise-
sensitive land uses. (Future Land Use, Zoning, and Urban Design Policy Statement 3). 

• The City encourages expanded and additional recreation vehicle areas to serve tourists. 
Rezoning of proposed commercial and/or multi-family land use near South Padre Island 
Drive (SPID) and in close proximity to the Laguna Madre for recreational vehicle usage 
should be encouraged. Zoning this area for recreation vehicles would take advantage of 
the natural resource of the Laguna Madre, excellent access to SPID and would meet 
community objectives to minimize potential for property losses in flood prone areas (due 
to the mobile nature of this use)(Policy Statement B.9). 
  

Department Comments: 
• The proposed rezoning is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan (Plan CC), 

compatible with the adjoining properties, does not have a negative impact upon the adjacent 
properties, and warrants an amendment to the Future Land Use map. 

• According to section 6.1.2.D.2 of the UDC, “Trailer pads shall be rented by the day or week 
only and the occupant of a trailer pad shall remain in the same Recreational Vehicle Park 
not more than 180 continuous days.” 

• According to section 6.1.2.D.3.a and b, “The following uses shall be permitted as accessory 
uses to a Recreational Vehicle park provided that such uses do not occupy more than one-
third of the area within the Recreational Vehicle park development. (Barber shops, beauty 
parlors, car wash, convenience grocery stores of less than 4,000 square feet, day care 
centers, dry cleaning receiving stations, fuel sales, restaurants excluding bars, taverns or 
pubs, and self-service laundries.) None of the described uses shall be allowed to operate 
within the proposed recreational vehicles. A single-family dwelling unit or Manufactured 
Home for resident watchmen or caretakers employed on the premises shall be permitted.   

• As a comparison, the subject property is currently zoned “RM-1” Multifamily 1 District which 
allows the construction of a multifamily development at a maximum density of 22 dwelling 
units per acre. Based on the subject property’s size of 7 acres, the maximum density of 
apartment units would equate to 154 apartments. The potential RV park is proposing 100 
pads sites. 

• Laguna Shores Boulevard is a “P1” Parkway Collector street which has the means to 
accommodate the increased traffic of the RV park patrons. Additionally, Caribbean Drive 
located approximately 400-feet to the south is a “C1” Minor Collector street. 

• If the “RV” District is approved, the required buffer yards will be: 
o “RV” District to “RS-6” District: Type B: 10-feet and 10-points. 
o “RV” District to “CN-1” District: Type A: 10-feet and 5-points. 

• Based on the preliminary FEMA flood zoned maps, the majority of the subject property is 
located within the “AE” zone. The base flood elevation (BFE) is 8-feet. 

• The portion Laguna Shores Road along the frontage of the subject property is listed for 
improvement in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 2020-2021 bond project list.  
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Planning Commission and Staff Recommendation (August 19, 2020): 
Approval of the change of zoning from the “RM-1” Multifamily 1 District to the “RV” Recreational 
Vehicle Park District. 
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Number of Notices Mailed – 52 within 200-foot notification area 
 5 outside notification area 

As of December 30, 2020: 
In Favor – 0 inside notification area

– 0 outside notification area

In Opposition – 8 inside notification area
– 0 outside notification area

Totaling 10.26% of the land within the 200-foot notification area in opposition. 

Attachments: 
A. Location Map (Existing Zoning & Notice Area) 
B. Public Comments Received (if any) 

https://corpuschristi.sharepoint.com/sites/DevelopmentServices/DevelopmentSvcs/SHARED/ZONING CASES/2020/0820-03 Owen A. Norton/Council 
Documents/Report - Owen A. Norton.docx 
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